ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2004
1: 07 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto

Representative Bob Lynn

Representative N ck Stepovich
Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 188

"An Act relating to the authority of the Departnment of Natura
Resources to issue citations for certain skiing violations;
relating to establishing a bail schedule for <certain skiing
violations and to procedures for issuing a citation for a skiing
violation."

- MOVED HB 188 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 35
Relating to nmad cow di sease and country-of-origin |abeling for
nmeat products.

- MOVED CSHIJR 35(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 344
"An Act relating to annual rental fees for mning clains, and
providing for reduced royalties during the first three years of
production. ™

- MOVED CSHB 344(RES) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 341
"An Act relating to the dive fishery managenent assessnent."”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2004



- MOVED HB 341 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 188

SHORT TITLE: BAIL SCHEDULE FOR SKI | NG VI OLATI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

03/ 12/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 03 (H RES, STA
02/ 25/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HIJR 35
SHORT TITLE: MAD COW DI SEASE/ COUNTRY OF ORI Gl N LABELS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KERTTULA

02/ 05/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 04 (H L&C, RES

02/ 16/ 04 (H L&C AT 3: 15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 16/ 04 (H Moved CSHIR 35(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 16/ 04 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 18/ 04 (H L&C RPT CS(L&C) NT 5DP 1INR

02/ 18/ 04 (H DP: CRAWCRD, LYNN, GATTO DAHLSTROM
02/ 18/ 04 (H GUTTENBERG, NR ANDERSON

02/ 25/ 04 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 344

SHORT TITLE. M NI NG FEES, RENTALS, & ROYALTIES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FATE

01/ 12/ 04 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) RES, FIN

02/ 04/ 04 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 04/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 04 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 23/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 23/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 23/ 04 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 25/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 341
SHORT TITLE: DI VE FI SHERY MANAGEMENT ASSESSMVENT
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LLI ANV

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 25, 2004



01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 04/ 04 (H) FSH RPT 6DP 1NR

02/ 04/ 04 (H DP: GARA, OGG, HEI NZE, W LSON,
02/ 04/ 04 (H) SAMUELS, SEATON; NR: GUTTENBERG
02/ 04/ 04 (H FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 04/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 04/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 16/ 04 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 16/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 25/ 04 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 188 as sponsor.

PAUL SWANSON, Area Manager

Eagl ecrest Ski Area

Cty and Borough of Juneau (CBJ)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 188.

LARRY DANI ELS

Al yeska Ski Resort

(no address provi ded)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 188.

RI CK THOWMPSON, Regi onal Land Manager

Sout hcentral Region Ofice

Di vision of Mning Land and Wt er

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 188, answered
questi ons.

AURORA HAUKE, St aff

to Representative Beth Kerttula

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented CSHIR 35(L&C) on behalf of
Representative Kerttula, sponsor

PH L KASPARI, Agricul tural Agent
Cooperati ve Extension Service (CES)

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2004



Del ta Junction, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on CSHIR 35(L&C), he
encouraged letting sound science rule decision-making rather
than politics, and urged the commttee to support specific
research on aninmals with bovine spongiform encephal opat hy.

PAUL KNOPP, Dairy Producer

Del ta Junction, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed concerns relating to CSHIR
35(L&CO) .

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on CSHB 344(RES), provided
information and answered questions on behalf of Representative
Fat e, sponsor.

BOB LCEFFLER, Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Department of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on CSHB 344(RES), provided
i nformati on and answered questi ons.

TI' M BARRY, Staff

to Representative Bill WIIlians

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 341 on behal f of
Representative WIIlianms, sponsor.

JULI E DECKER, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Regional Dive Fisheries Association ( SARDFA)

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 341, provided
i nformati on and answered questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-8, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR NANCY DAHLSTROM called the House Resources Standing

Committee neeting to order at 1:07 p.m Represent ati ves Masek,
Dahl strom Heinze, WIf, Guttenberg, and Kerttula were present

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2004



at the <call to order. Representatives Gatto, Lynn, and
St epovi ch arrived as the neeting was in progress.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM passed the gavel over to Co-Chair Masek.

HB 188- BAI L SCHEDULE FOR SKI I NG VI OLATI ON

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 188, "An Act relating to the authority of the
Departnent of Natural Resources to issue citations for certain
skiing violations; relating to establishing a bail schedule for
certain skiing violations and to procedures for issuing a
citation for a skiing violation."

Nunmber 0135

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, speaking
as sponsor, explained that HB 188 was brought forth on behal f of
Al aska's skiing industry. He said forner Senator [Jay] Kerttula
was instrunental in sponsoring and noving a bill called the
[ Al aska] Ski Safety Act, which defined responsibilities and
gui dance for the managenent and operation of ski areas that were
developing in the state. He said that particular |egislation
created sone obligations on the part of skiing participants to
be safe and prudent, but it didn't conpromse the ability to
enj oy an aggressive and adventurous sport. However, he said it
did provide sone "does and don'ts,"” which are fairly consistent
with some prudent practices. Representati ve Hawker i ndicated
that under the Al aska Ski Safety Act, a skier involved in a
collision with another skier, that results in an injury, may not
| eave the scene [of the accident] except to secure aid. He said
it was anticipated that the Al aska Supreme Court would establish
a bail schedule - a schedule of fines - for non-felony, non-
m sdeneanor, and "traffic-ticket type of violations."

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER sai d the Al aska Supreme Court [determ ned]
that the |anguage wasn't clear enough and a letter in the bill
packet from the National Ski Patrol offers a particularly good
analysis of the Alaska Suprenme Court's view and an explanation
of its problem with the creation of the bail schedule. He
paraphrased from the letter, which read in part [origina
punct uation provided]:

The Al aska Suprene Court ruled that the |anguage in

the original legislation was not specific enough to
give themthe authority to establish a bail schedul e.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER continued paraphrasing from the |ast
paragraph on page 1 of the letter, which read in part [origina
punctuation provided]:

Adm nistrative Rule 43(a) states: "The Suprene Court
wi Il consider adopting a bail forfeiture schedule only
when so authorized by statute ...". The Court decided
the language in AS 05.45.100(h) is not an adequate
aut hori zati on.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER i ndicated that the intention of the bil
is to further fix a piece of excellent legislation and nmake it
work as it was originally intended to. He said part of the
original concern was that the authority to have bail schedul es
only applied to ski operations on land that the state had
jurisdiction. He said it wasn't clear that this was to apply to
both privately operated facilities and those operated by the
state, which Section 1(h) addresses.

Nunber 0710

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that Section 2 was added
to [order the Alaska Suprenme Court] to establish a
bail schedule, and he explained that the |anguage is
consistent with existing statute in which simlar bai
schedules are authorized in the state for boating
violations, fish and game fines, and notor vehicles
fines and schedul es.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER noted that it doesn't make a | ot of sense

in reading the bill, and he remarked, "You ve got to go in the
context of the law in which it was intended to operate.” He
concluded that the bill authorizes the Al aska Suprene Court to

set up a bail schedule, a schedule of fines for violations of
specific provisions of the Alaska Ski Safety Act, and clarifies
that the Alaska Ski Safety Act was intended to apply to ski
resorts operating on private land throughout the state as well
as | and owned by the state.

Nunmber 0858

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked about noney coll ected fromfi nes.
REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER expl ained that the Al aska Ski Safety Act
does not establish a specific fund to get around the dedication

prohi bi ti ons, SO it ultimately becones "gener al fund
appropri at eabl e noney. "

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2004



Number 0914

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if all ski resorts in Alaska have
| i quor |icenses.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER deferred the question to ski industry
menbers.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked about the fiscal note in relation to a
peace officer issuing citations.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked which provision involving a peace
officer is of concern.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if it would be an expense to the state
for peace officers to issue citations.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he thought Representative WIf was
referring to AS 41. 21. 960.

CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM clarified that the statute in question is
|isted on page 1, line 10 of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said the statute is also listed on page 2,
[line 13].

Number 1010

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said it is contextual and that a reference
to peace officers is not involved in this citation. He said
that section is intended strictly to authorize a bail schedul e.
He explained that the issue would be regarding whether it is
applicable under the existing Alaska Ski Safety Act if a DNR
enpl oyee or an Al aska State Trooper is enforcing violations on

state | ands. Representative Hawker said in that case, DNR is
authorized to enpower people who neet its qualifications to
issue citations on nonpublic |ands. He explained that the

violations are not authorized to involve attorneys or additiona
court tinme, which is why there is a bail schedule, because
[these types of cases] get dispensed very rapidly wthout the
need for legal costs to the state.

CO- CHAIR DAHLSTROM said she also had sonme of these sane
questions and believes the next commttee of referral, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee, is the appropriate place for
t hat discussion to take place.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2004



Number 1129

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that the packet contains three
or four pages that deal wth AS 05.45.100, "Duties and
responsibilities of skiers." He asked a question relating to
subsection (c), paragraph (2), regarding the requirenent for the
ski to be "equipped with a strap or other device capable of
stopping the ski should the ski becone unattached from the
skier".

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM sai d she thought it was a valid issue, but it
should be addressed in House State Affairs Standing Conmittee
rat her than in the House Resources Standing Conmittee.

Number 1242

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH asked if the liabilities already take
into consideration what Representative Hawker is trying to
[address with this bill].

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER expl ained that this bill does not attenpt
to rewite or reconsider the statutory authority that was
created in the Alaska Ski Safety Act itself; instead this bill
was drafted to deal with a specific problem with inplenmenting
the Al aska Ski Safety Act.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH said he is under the inpression that
[ski areas are already enforcing the issues being addressed]
with this bill. He asked if the ski patrol could issue
[citations under the authority of DNR]

REPRESENTATI VE HAVKER r emar ked:

That would be a decision ... made by the comm ssioner
of natural resources [DNR] who ... in self is
constrained by the regulations ... that wuld need to
be pronulgated to quantify - ... essentially,

investing that authority within the comm ssioner
either to conply wth existing regulation or to
develop the regulation necessary to (indisc.)

aut hori ze persons to provide for citations.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH asked if [the  bill woul d all ow
citations] to be witten on the ski hill for certain violations.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER replied no. He explained that this bill
specifically authorizes the Al aska Suprenme Court to create a
bail schedule for citations that would be issued under the
authority that was provided in the original Al aska Ski Safety
Act .

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH said it seens |like the [Alaska Sk
Safety Act] addressed these [issues].

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER  of fered to provi de Representati ve
Stepovich with a letter from the Al aska Suprene Court. He said
the Al aska Suprene Court has asked [the |legislature] to grant it
specific authority and it would develop the bail schedul e, which
was contenplated in the original Act.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM asked Representative Hawker to provide the
commttee with a copy of the letter and to include it in the

House State Affairs Standing Conmttee's bill packets. She said
she was positive these concerns wll and do need to be
addr essed.

CO CHAIR MASEK explained that the purpose of the bill is to
address technical issues that were not addressed in the [Al aska
Ski Safety Act]. She said she thought the intent of the bill is

to clarify the statutes in order for the [Al aska Ski Safety Act]
to work. She said the courts can't really inplenent the [Al aska
Ski Safety Act] or enforce it wunless it 1is authorized in
statute, because the Alaska Suprene Court has determ ned that
there is no clear authorization in statute for such a schedul e.
Co-Chair Masek called the bill "clean cut,"” and she said DNR had
wor ked on inplenenting a bail schedule, which is included in the
bill packet.

Nunber 1571
REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH r enar ked:

In respect to people that bring bills before this
commttee; they want them all to go through. oo
don't know where to address this. ... | am on the
resource conmttee; |I'm not on state affairs. A
just have trouble with the qualifications of those who
are going to be able to get these out. | just want it
stated for the record. Qualifications for those who
are going to give these tickets out on the ski hill
and their abilities to assess the skills of the skiers
that they're going to give the tickets to.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 25, 2004



Nunmber 1619

PAUL SWANSON, Area Mnager, Eaglecrest Ski Area, Cty and
Borough of Juneau testified. M. Swanson paraphrased from the
followng witten testinony, which read [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Thank you Madanme Chair and Menbers of the Commttee
for the opportunity to testify this afternoon in
support of HB 188.

For the record, ny nane is Paul Swanson. | am Area
Manager of Eaglecrest Ski Area which is owned and
operated by the Cty and Borough of Juneau.

When the Al aska Ski Safety Act was enacted in 1994 it
clearly identified duties and responsibilities of both
t he ski area and the skier.

However, currently we are unable to fully enforce all
provisions due to the fact that the bail schedule as
called for in the Act has not been established by the
courts.

| feel that passage of this bill is needed to support
the intent of the Ski Safety Act and reinforce current
area operations and safety policies as approved by the
Departnent of Natural Resources.

The establishment of the bail schedule will allow us
to deal nore effectively wth wviolators, such as
skiers who enter a closed area and those under the
i nfluence of al cohol and controll ed substances.

It is inportant to note that the Act does not prohibit
skiers from going out of the ski area boundaries - at
their own risk

| appreciate your support and amw lling to answer any
guestions you nm ght have.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH i nqui red about the nunber of violations
that have occurred at Eagl ecrest Ski Area.

MR. SWANSON said there were less than 10 instances of people
going into closed areas this year

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if the Eaglecrest Ski Area deals
with violations itself.

MR. SWANSON said it does at the present tinme. He explained that
the ski area deals with it by revoking skiing privileges or
taking the skier's pass for 30 days, which mght occur at the
end of the day. However, he said there is really no way to keep
t hat person away for 30 days.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH noted that he would rather pay the fine
than have his privileges revoked. He asked if there are a |ot
of collisions or civil suits against [Eaglecrest Ski Area].

MR. SWANSON remarked, "Not in our case." He said nmany people
would not want to pay the fine, and he felt the [bill] is a
better avenue for [the ski industry] to take. M. Swanson said
he doesn't consider there to be a lot of offenders, but if
[violators] had to pay for his or her mstakes, he thought it
woul d be | ooked at better than the way it is currently being
dealt with.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH said sone mght argue that it is very
expensive to go skiing, but he knows Eaglecrest Ski Area has
good pri ces.

MR. SWANSON replied, "W're not maeking any noney."

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH rel ated his belief that $50 is the nost
soneone in Al aska would pay to go skiing, which is a ot for one
day. He offered his belief that $50 citations can still be
i ssued under current statute, and said he would like to see [how
many citations have been issued thus far].

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM asked Representative Hawker to provide the
committee with that information

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said existing circunstance allows an
operator to issue a $50 naxi mum fine. He said the bill packet
contains an additional letter offered by the Eaglecrest Ski Area
that identified the original DNR proposed bail schedule, which
identified the priorities where DNR wi shes to increnment the
i ndi vidual fines beyond the $50 maxi num He explained that the
Al aska Suprene Court was asked to authorize a bail schedule to
put $150 for skiing on a closed slope or trail, $100 for riding
lifts or skiing under the influence of alcohol or drugs, and
$150 for a skier having a hit and run accident. Representati ve

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2004



Hawker said the point of the bail schedule is to increase a few
of these violation charges.

Nunber 2047

LARRY DAN ELS, Alyeska Ski Resort, testified. M. Daniels
stated his support for HB 188 as proposed. He explained that he
was involved in the original legislation and in pronoting it
through the |egislature. M. Daniels said this bill just
perfects the original Alaska Ski Safety Act of 1994, and to
finish the intent of the original legislation, which did not
provide that specific authorization to the Al aska Suprene Court
to establish a bail schedule. He explained that on occasion
there are problens with skiers colliding with each other and in
sone cases it can result in a fairly serious injury. Currently,
he said there is no deterrent fromthat person running away from
t he accident. He said even if that person is identified and
caught, the process that would have to be gone through to
involve the Alaska State Troopers and using assault-type
processes have, to this point in tinm, been essentially non-
effective because it takes so nuch investigative tine and a
| arge degree of effort on behalf of the district attorney to
pr ocess. He said Alyeska Ski Resort has only had one situation
i ke that, but currently there is no deterrent.

MR. DANI ELS said another exanple is of people skiing in an area
that is exposed to aval anche conditions, and not only do those
peopl e expose thenselves to danger but they potentially expose
other skiers and the ski patrol, if a rescue is needed. He
conpared it to having speed limts on a highway and not having
the ability to issue citations for driving violations. He said
he didn't think that enacting HB 188 would increase the nunber

of tickets being witten. He remarked, "Once the deterrent is
there, and a few were witten - in only the nost egregious of
cases - then | think that we could expect to see sone

significant reduction in those kinds of issues.”

Number 2231

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG turned attention to page 1, line 11,
and he asked about the jurisdictional change and the |arger
af fect of the change.

Number 2293

RI CK  THOVPSON, Regi onal Land Manager, Sout hcentr al Regi on
Ofice, Dywvision of Mning, Land and Water, Departnment of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 25, 2004



Nat ural Resources, testified. M. Thonpson said his belief is
[the bill] changes the jurisdiction from ski areas on state
owned land to any ski area operator in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that the bill packet contains a
letter from the conmm ssioner of DNR He explained that the
first paragraph of the letter does address that the purpose of
this is to provide "the authority to establish bail schedul es
for ski safety act violations and that all ski areas - those on
state land and those on other lands - be treated equally in
regards to enforcenent of these violations.™ He said it is a
clarifying point.

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked [M . Thonpson] how he envisioned
this bill working and who would be [issuing the citations].

MR. THOWPSON said DNR is looking forward to the passage of this

bill. He explained that the ski patrol would investigate the
incident, wite a report, and pass on the report to DNR He
said DNR enpl oyees appointed to work on that project would be
issuing any [citations]. He said typically, DNR may only be
i ssuing about three [citations] per year. M. Thonpson noted
that there was a high of nine [citations] issued one year, but
there are zero [citations] issued nmany years. He said the

violations are typically pretty serious when they do occur.
Number 2433

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO thanked M. Swanson for accommodating his
13 year-old son last year during a one-day visit snowboarding at
Eagl ecrest Ski Area.

Nunmber 2455

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE noved to report HB 188 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 188 was reported from the
House Resources Standing Commttee.

HIR 35- MAD COW DI SEASE/ COUNTRY OF ORI G N LABELS

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 35, Relating to mad cow di sease
and country-of-origin |labeling for nmeat products.

COCHAIR MASEK noted that CSHIR 35(L&C) was before the
conm ttee.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA, speaking as sponsor, noted that her
staff would be presenting the resolution, and she remarked, "The
ex-director of agriculture, who was also the ex-Senator we just
heard about, was evidently a better farner than he was |awer,
so | can tell you that he's worked very hard on this particular
piece of legislation, and it's basically a |abeling piece of
| egislation ... supporting that."

CO CHAI R MASEK i nquired about the changes nmade in the commttee
substitute (CS) and asked that Representative Kerttula's staff
speak to those changes.

Number 2553

AURORA HAUKE, Staff to Representative Beth Kerttula, presented
CSHIJIR 35(L&C) on behalf of Representative Kerttula, sponsor.
Ms. Hauke expl ai ned that bovine spongi form encephal opat hy (BSE),
"mad cow disease,” and the disease humans can get fromit, the

Creut zfel dt - Jakob di sease (CJD), are very scary. The di seases
are invariably fatal and there is no cure, but they can be
prevented, she said. This resolution supports efforts of the

USDA [United States Departnent of Agriculture] to prevent the
di sease and al so encourages earlier inplenentation of country-
of-origin labeling (COOL) for beef, she said. Turning attention

changes made in the CS, she directed attention to page 2, lines
1-2, and she said the language in the [original resolution was
changed to reflect the actions of the USDA]. Language found on

page 1, line 16, through page 2, lines 1 and 2, of the origina
resol ution read:

WHEREAS the United States Departnent of Agriculture
has taken steps to identify and destroy cattle that
are from the sane herd as the infected cow and ot her
animal s that may have been exposed to that cow, and

M5. HAUKE explained that the USDA stopped searching for nore
cows fromthat herd, so the | anguage was changed to read:

WHEREAS the United States Departnent of Agriculture
has taken steps to control bovine spongiform
encephal opat hy; and

M5. HAUKE said another change nade to the CS was the addition of
"bovi ne spongi f orm encephal opathy"” into the title.

Nunmber 2628

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 25, 2004



CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM noting that she appreciated the changes,
asked what other states are doing to inplenent regulations or
anything pertaining to the sane subject.

M5. HAUKE explained that eight other states have |egislation

pendi ng. One state has passed a resolution encouraging the
opening of international beef nmarkets. Four states already
require the labeling of inported beef. The other eight states

have various legislation that nostly have to do wth tracking
and identification, and there are a couple of bills that deal
with neat processing and rendering regulations, she explained

There is a bill that would nmake it a crime not to test aninal
feed or not to ensure animal feed is safe, and there is an
appropriation for an identification system She said Ilowa has a
resolution to support the inplenentation of [COOL] |abeling by

2004, and last year, it had a resolution to support postponing
that, but after the discovery of the "mad cow' [in the state of
Washi ngton] "they changed their mnds, | guess.” Ms. Hauke

remarked, "New York has had legislation since 2002, so that's
not new. "

Nunber 2710

CO CHAI R MASEK asked what Congress is doing with regard to this
i ssue. She turned attention to page 2, lines 17-19, which read:

FURTHER RESCLVED that the Alaska State Legislature
supports any efforts by the Al aska congressiona
del egation to inplenment country-of-origin |abeling for
meat products sooner than the current inplenentation
dat e.

M5. HAUKE said in the omibus appropriations bill, the country
of origin |abeling, which was supposed to take effect 1in
Sept enber 2004, was pushed back to Septenber 2006. She said
there were several reasons for that and there was also a |ot of
opposi tion. She said there has been talk about noving the
i npl enentati on date back up. Ms. Hauke said a nenber of United
States Senator Ted Stevens' staff said Senator Stevens was
i nvol ved in discussions.

Nunber 2764

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked Ms. Hauke if the Canadi an gover nnment
is cooperating with the United States and to what extent.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 25, 2004



M5. HAUKE said the [the Canadian governnent] inplenented the
feed ban at the sanme tinme as the United States. She stated her
belief that the [Canadian governnent] is being very cooperative
with the United States, and said it had shut down sone borders
from [allowing in] beef shipments from the United States, even
t hose goi ng t hrough.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE pointed out that |ast spring, [Canadian
custons] were stopping [vehicles] at the border for having itens
such as beef broth. She asked if [the resolution] wll affect
this in any way.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she had heard that [Canadian
custons] had even taken dog food. She said she didn't know the
current situation at the border, but this [resolution] doesn't
i npact that except in terns of recognizing that issue. She said
this [resolution] is "going nore toward® the |labeling of the
ani mal product. Representative Kerttula, noting it is a good
gquestion, offered to check to see [what products are being
st opped at the Canadi an border].

Number 2764

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, directing attention to page 2, lines 11
and 13, noted previous discussion in the [House Labor and
Commerce Standing Commttee] about the |anguage "deserve", and
he said he didn't renenber [what outconme of that discussion].

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA clarified that there had been discussion
in the previous conmttee about whether the word "deserve"
should stay in the |egislation. She said she didn't have any
particular belief on it, but the previous commttee really felt
that it was sonething that Anericans did deserve to know and it
wanted to keep the stronger |anguage in the resol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that he was uneasy with the word, and
said he didn't think it properly described what "we were after.”
He suggested [it read] "Anericans have the right to know' or
"Anericans shoul d be advi sed" because he said the word "deserve"
is so conpelling and so focused that "there isn't any way out of

it." He remarked, "Everybody deserves to know, and | thought, |
know that's not going to change the effect of the bill." He
said he still Ilikes the alternative term nology because he

didn't think "deserve” was the right word. Representative Gatto
said he felt he had to bring that up, and he was not going to
object to it.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 25, 2004



Nunmber 2933

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG sai d he thought what happened in the
House Labor and Comrerce Standing Committee is it couldn't find
sonething that better fit what was felt or a substitute that
actually net that. Addressing a previous question from
Representative Heinze, he said he had dog food confiscated at
the border and he knew of a staff nenber that had al so had dog
food confiscated at the border but the manufacturer conpensated
her for that.

Number 2961
REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH noted that he liked the word "need."

TAPE 04-8, SIDE B

Nunber 2978

PH L KASPARI, Agricultural Agent, Cooperative Extension Service
(CES), testified. He said in general he agreed wth the
resolution but he was concerned by one itemin particular. M.

Kaspari directed attention to page 2, [line 4], the |anguage
"nonanbul atory di sabled cattle", and he said the USDA has a nmade

the decision to ban those animals from slaughter. He said he
was not an expert but he felt like that was a reactionary
maneuver on the part of the USDA to calm the public's concerns
regarding the safety of the neat being purchased. M. Kaspari

suggested that the [USDA] was not necessarily wusing sound
science. He said there are so many questions regardi ng BSE that
scientists and researches have not yet been able to answer that
he felt like things mght have to be slowed down just a little
bit to let sound science rule the decision nmaking rather than
politics.

MR. KASPARI said the nunber of "downer animals" that do cone
into a slaughter generally have very obvious problens such as a
broken leg or what is referred to as "hip lock,"” which occurs
when the ani nmal experiences problens during the cal ving process.
Generally, he said producers |ook upon downer animals in an
ethical manner, rather than wasting that commodity, producers
would just as soon use it in an ethical nmanner and have the
animal utilized. He said if the use of downer animals is
banned, then a couple of things happen. For exanple, he said
there is a certain anount of economc hardship inposed upon
producers, and it also [causes] a certain ampunt of paranoia in
producers. He said he knows that this whole issue is being

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 25, 2004



di scussed on a national basis and is evolving, and he thought
user groups are talking to USDA representatives.

MR. KASPARI said he hoped the commttee would add a line that
woul d nention supporting specific research on BSE aninmals,
because scientists are currently allowed to research chronic
wasting disease (CWD), which is basically the same di sease that
occurs in the deer famly such as Elk. He nentioned [CWD
occurrences in] white tailed deer in Mchigan, Wsconsin, and
parts of Mnnesota, and he said wld herds are suffering with
thi s di sease.

Number 2774

PAUL KNOPP, Dairy producer, began by saying he has sone real
concerns with this resolution. He said he wonders where these
statenents cone from because they haven't all necessarily been
proven by science. M. Knopp asked if the state veterinarian
has been contacted about this statenent. He said he really
thought this should be taken further, which he thought is why
the USDA has initiated a two-year noratorium to |look at it and
get sonme scientific evidence "of where they're trying to go."

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA thanked both M. Kaspari and M. Knopp
for testifying and she told them she was really open to talking
nore with them about their concerns after the neeting. She said
the Departnent of Envi r onnment al Conservation (DEC) was
cont act ed, and that she had thought about i nt roduci ng
| egislation to "require inspection"” comng into Al aska but she
felt satisfied after speaking to DEC that it wasn't really
necessary, and she decided instead to go with the "resolution
route.” She said a lot of the information in the resolution is
taken directly from the Federal Register, the USDA, and also
frominformati on and research that was put out at the tinme that
BSE was found in the cow in [Washington], and in articles from
The New York Tines. She said M. Kaspari nmade a good point
about a cow that breaks its leg, but the idea is when there is a
nonanbul atory disabled cow, which is defined in the Federal
Regi ster as dead, dying, disabled, and diseased. Representative
Kerttula said M. Kaspari is talking about a cow that she didn't
think any farmer "in their right mnd" is going to put into a
food strain. She said maybe that |anguage could be a little
nore specific but generally she thought that was the idea.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she didn't disagree that care
should be taken with regard to factual information, but all of
the things in the resolution have been researched back to fact,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 25, 2004



which is the reason for the nonanbul atory di sease cattle phrase
that was taken directly from the Federal Register. She said
this is not [intended] to do sonething radical or that may hurt
the industry and is really much nore about protecting the
i ndustry and ensuring "we know what we're getting."

Nunber 2585

COCHAIR DAHLSTROM noved to report CSHIR 35(L& ) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR 35(L&C) was
reported out of the House Resources Standing Commttee.

CO CHAI R MASEK passed the gavel back to Co-Chair Dahl strom

HB 344-M NI NG FEES, RENTALS, & ROYALTIES

CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 344, "An Act relating to annual rental fees
for mning clainms, and providing for reduced royalties during
the first three years of production.”

COCHAIR MASEK clarified that [Version 1] was before the
comittee.

Nunber 2517

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, canme forward to explain CSHB 344(RES) on behal f of

Representative Fate, sponsor. M. Fate said the |anguage in the
CS nore so neets the requirenents of what the intent of the
original bill was, which was to help the small mner "get back

out in the field and stay back out in the field" in order to
bring [the small m ning] econony back to Al aska. He said the CS
allows that if the small mner is late on filing the required
paperwork, that person is not automatically deemed to have
abandoned the site, and it gives [the small mner] a "cure" in
order to prevent that from happening, although the cure doesn't
conme without penalty. If the paperwork is filed even one day
late, the small mner wll ultimately have to pay one year's
rent on his or her clains. He said the sponsor worked with the
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Alaska Mner's
Association very closely and it was nmutually agreed that this is
the direction that will have the npbst positive inpact on the
m ning industry.

Nunmber 2449

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how much noney this bill wll save
t he average placer m ner.

MR, POUND said it is not so nmuch a case of saving noney. He
said currently, if a mner files his or her paperwork one day
| ate, the state deens that mne as abandoned, and that person
will ultimately lose his or her clains. He said the anount of
noney a particular mner mght |lose is dependant on how nuch
that person has in his or her clains.

Nunmber 2414

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about extensions for filing late
paper wor k. He asked how nmuch tine a small mner would have
under the bill before the mne is considered abandoned.

BOB LCEFFLER, Director, Dvision of Mning, Land and Wter,
Department of Natural Resources, replied that the way the system
has worked since the 1872 mning law, is that the mning year
ends on Septenber 30, and the mner has until Novenber 30 to
either pay or record his or her annual |abor and pay rent [on
the mning clainj. If for sonme reason the mner is late, he
said those clainms are abandoned by operation of law and there is
not hing he can do about it. M. Loeffler said it is the mner's
responsibility and has been since 1872 to ensure that he or she
files the [required paperwork] on tine. Every year, he said
there are about a dozen people that don't have a good excuse and
sonme of those people cone in begging [himl to do [sonething for
them, although there is nothing he can do under the current

| aw. He said this bill would give a mner who pays late the
opportunity to cure. Under current |law, the m nes are abandoned
and may not be staked for a year. During that year period

soneone else may stake that claim and it would becone that
person's claim He said the [late paying] mner can cure by
paying a penalty. M. Loeffler said it's typically the small

mners - through error, inconpetence, or old age - that "blow
it" occasionally, and it averages about a dozen or two dozen a
year. He said this [bill] gives those mners an opportunity to

keep wor ki ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what the renedy would be wth
t he passage of this bill

MR, LCEFFLER said it would allow the mner to pay a penalty and
t he abandonnent is cured.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what the penalty is.

MR. LCEFFLER said the mner wuld have to pay for what is
al ready owed and an additional penalty equal to the annual rent
for that mning claim

CO CHAIR DAHLSTOM offered her wunderstanding that the vyear's
annual rent wll be a different nunber for each individual
claim

MR. LOEFFLER said the annual rent depends on how long the claim
has been in existence, so there could be a couple of different
nunbers.

Nunber 2163

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked what the tinme limt is on the
penal ty.

MR. LOEFFLER said there is no tine limt, but there would be no
real reason to do it after a year because that mner could just
re-stake his or her claim

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if anyone coul d stake the claim

MR. LOEFFLER said the law is really consistent with history and
tradition since 1872, and the it works if soneone else hasn't
asserted contrary rights. If sonmeone else stakes the claim
that person gets the claim He indicated that a m ner could not
| ose his or her claimif over-staked by another miner as |ong as
t he paperwork is current.

Number 2105

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how long a person could be late on
filing his or her paperwork.

MR. LOEFFLER said as long as no one stakes a claim to the
contrary and the mner wants to pay all of the penalties, it is
fine with him

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH asked if a slow pay is better than no
pay.

MR. LOCEFFLER replied yes.

Number 2039

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE noved to report CSHB 344(RES), Version 23-
LS1298\1, Bullock, 2/20/04 out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 344(RES) was reported from the House
Resources Standing Committee.

HB 341- DI VE FI SHERY MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM announced that the final order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 341, "An Act relating to the dive
fi shery managenent assessnent.”

Number 1988

TIM BARRY, Staff to Representative Bill WIlianms, Al aska State
Legi slature, speaking on behalf of Representative WIIians,
sponsor, told the commttee HB 341 is a "housekeeping neasure"
requested by the Southeast Al aska Regional Dive Fisheries
Association (SARDFA) to provide nore flexibility in its

oper ati ons. He turned attention to a fact sheet provided by
SARDFA, and explained that SARDFA nenbers pay a tax that 1is
based on the percentage of the value of their catch. He said

the revenue fromthis tax is spent on nanaging the various dive
fisheries that nmenbers are involved wth. M. Barry said under
current state law, association nmenbers elect to tax thenselves
by species at a rate of 1, 3, 5, or 7 percent of the value of
the landings in a given dive fishery.

Number 1857

JULI E DECKER, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Regional D ve
Fi sheries Association, testified. She stated that this bill is
mai nly a housekeepi ng neasure. Menbers are currently allowed to
assess thenselves at either 1,3,5 or 7 percent and would also
like to be given the ability to assess thenselves at 2, 4, or 6
percent, which is what this bill would do, she said. Currently,
she said the sea cucunber and the geoduck fisheries assess
thenselves at 5 percent, and the sea urchin fishery is at 7
percent. Ms. Decker said she believes the original reason why
the bill had to specify the 1, 3, 5, or 7 percentages is because
the legislature is the only body that has the authority to tax
and it couldn't give that authority in a broad sense to SARDFA.
However, she said the legislature could give SARDFA the
authority to vote and tax itself at a [specific percentage
anount] .

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 25, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked Ms. Decker if $66,695 s
SARDFA' s adm ni strative budget.

MS. DECKER said correct but she thought that anpbunt was from a
previ ous year. She said the [adm nistrative budget] is in the
$50, 000 range each year.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked Ms. Decker if SARDFA is only
trying to raise the anount of noney needed for its
adm ni strative budget.

M5. DECKER said SARDFA is not |ooking to change anything wth
this legislation aside from the ability in the future to
possi bly change the rate that SARDFA assesses itself at. She
said the rate at which SARDFA assesses itself equates to the
[total value of assessnents for each fiscal year] and the tota
anounts are generated by the percents, which are currently 1, 3,
5, and 7. Ms. Decker said SARDFA would like the ability to do
2,4, or 6 percent if it needs to. She said currently, in the
sea cucunber fishery, in particular, SARDFA has a little bit of
an excess at 5 percent, but if it |lowers the assessnent down to
3 percent it would be a 40 percent reduction and SARDFA woul d be
alittle bit short. M. Decker said SARDFA is trying to foresee
that it my be able to reduce it down to 4 percent and be just
ri ght.

Nunmber 1665

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked Ms. Decker if SARDFA currently
assesses itself at 1, 3, 5, or 7 percent.

M5. DECKER said SARDFA has the ability to vote to tax itself at
t hose percent ages.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked Ms. Decker how the percentages woul d
be adjusted with the passage of the bill

M5. DECKER said there was talk anong divers in the sea cucunber
industry that they may |ook at reducing the assessnent to 4
percent, if they had that ability. She remarked, "W don't have
that ability, so we're trying to look forward and ... see that
com ng. " She said the geoduck fishery is also talking about
increasing its assessnment but if the assessnent needs to be
changed, it has to cone from a petition from within nenbership
or wwthin the permt holders, and they always have that ability
to change the assessnent if they would |iKke.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- February 25, 2004



Nunber 1584

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE directed attention to page 1, line 8, and
she asked who determ nes the el ection.

M5. DECKER expl ai ned that the association would hold an el ection
and all of the permt holders within each fishery who have
legitimate permts would be able to vote.

Nunmber 1539

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said it |ooked as though the executive
director's salary is half of SARDFA's budget, and he asked how
that salary is determ ned.

M5. DECKER said every year SARDFA' s board of directors signs a
contract with the current executive director and every year that
is up for change. She said the budget within the adm nistration
is just the "nuts and bolts,"” and SARDFA has a budget outside of
that for having contracts with people to do (indisc.) work and
PSD [prevention of significant deterioration] sanpling, water
sanpling, and other projects.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he was curious to see how nuch nobney
SARDFA is spending. He asked how nuch noney SARDFA actually
spends.

MS. DECKER turned attention to the SARDFA handout entitled "D ve
Fi sheries Fact Sheet - Corrected,” and she said nunber six is
t he assessnent that SARDFA col |l ects each year.

Nunber 1426

REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVI CH noved to report HB 341 out of conmttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 341 was reported from the
House Resources Standing Comm ttee.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:25 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 25, 2004



